
Carlin City Council
City of Carlin Meeting Minutes      February 25, 2015

1

CARLIN CITY COUNCIL
CITY OF CARLIN, STATE OF NEVADA

REGULAR MEETING
CARLIN CITY HALL

101 SOUTH EIGHTH STREET
CARLIN, NEVADA

February 25, 2015, 7:00 p.m.

Call to Order and Roll Call:
Mayor Donnetta Skinner called the meeting of the City Council to order at 7:05 p.m.
Council Members Present:  Mayor Donnetta Skinner

Councilperson Bob DeMars
Councilperson Jay Duke
Councilperson Pam Griswold

                                    Absent: Vice Mayor Lincoln Litchfield
1. Administrative Staff: City C lerk LaDawn Lawson,  Police Chief Dennis  Fobes , Public  Works 

Director Carlos Esparza
2. Present:  Anna Dean, Marion Hose, Jan  Brizee ,  Tom Burney, Kathy Burney,  Jim Brown,  Paul  

Tanguay, Rick Anderson, Roger Anderson

Pledge of Allegiance

I. Comment by the General Public: Pursuant to NRS 241.020(2C) this time is devoted to 
comments by the general public and discussion of those comments. No action may be taken 
upon a matter raised under this item until the matter has been included on a successive 
agenda and identified as an action item. (Non-Action Item)
1. Janice  Brizee  stated she has two concerns, first that she wanted to thank Darla Baldwin for her 

years of service to the people and senior citizens of Carlin, but she feels her termination is 
unwarranted but she is capable of disputing this if she so desires.  She noted her primary 
concern is for the citizens of Carlin.  The transportation grant, which pays for the Meals on 
Wheels Senior Van and the Nutrition Program  Grant, which  provides food for independent and 
homebound  seniors,  is critical to maintain.  “I cannot express how important it is to make sure 
you as City Council Members keep on top of those two grant renewals.  Without the Meals on 
Wheels food being delivered daily, we do have Carlin residents who cannot get out and about 
and fend for themselves and they will risk death and that is not an exaggeration.  Take a trip w 
hen  they deliver meals one day if you doubt that.  It is on you and on City Manager David 
Jones to save those two programs”.  She explained, “The second item is a statement to the City 
Council and to the residents of Carlin.  Will Johnston is no longer fire chief of the Carlin Fire 
Department after serving this community for 45 years.  Congratulations are extended to his 
successor, Linda Bingaman, who is competent and experienced because he has trained her. That 
being said, I am here to say that I am disgusted by the actions of the new regime that lead to 
Will Johnston being ousted this past Monday.   This was totally without his consent and against 
his will.  He did not come home to attend Monday’s meeting or to make a statement or to put 
up a fight; that much is true, because he was kept completely in the dark.  Not a single fire 
department member, including anyone here tonight, I thought there would be, but there is not, 
even had the decency to offer him a smidgen of dignity or respect by giving him a phone call to 
tell him that his time here in Carlin is done.  Will (Johnston) had to call Linda (Bingaman) 
yesterday to find out his fate. It is not like they did not know how to reach him; they all knew 
where he was.  He was in  Jarbidge  grieving the loss of his mother who passed away less than 2 
blocks away from where I am standing, whose obituary asked in lieu of flowers that donations 
to be made to the Fire Department or the Senior Center.  Will spent all winter here at home 
helping us care for her and being a daily witness to the most horrific anguish that I have ever 



Carlin City Council
City of Carlin Meeting Minutes      February 25, 2015

2

known.  Will is not one to tell people about his burdens  that he has been shouldering or ask for 
sympathy, but it is not as if this backstabbing Fire Department did not know what he was going 
through.  They transported  J err i  by ambulance back and forth to the hospital approximately 8 
times between her diagnoses on December 11 and the day she passed away on January 17 ,  38 
days.  Did they give him the time to grieve? Did any member of the department bother to come 
to talk to him to give him a heads up, to listen to his reasons for wanting to finish out the next 5 
years.   You cannot tell me that they have not had  this  planned out since the awards ceremony 
last fall when so ingeniously gave him a Henry rifle  as an ominous good riddance.  I used to 
think that all firefighters were honorable people.  I put them right up there with members of the 
military, but now I have changed my mind.  What this department has done is despicable and 
dishonorable.  But on a brighter note, won’t it be nice for the current department members 
when they attend conferences and outside meetings; they will have to answer questions from 
people across the state and others, Utah, California, everybody knows Will.  They knew and 
respected Will Johnston and the member will most assuredly answer, ‘Will, oh he retired’.  I 
hope they can sleep at night.  Will Johnston retired from the Fire Science Academy.  He was 
forced out of the Carlin Fire Department.  Council Members thank you for your time.”

2. Mayor Donnetta Skinner inquired, “Did anyone know about this?”
3. Jan Brizee replied, “The City Manager surely knew”.
4. Councilperson Jay Duke inquired, “Knew about what, what do you mean”?
5. Mayor Donnetta Skinner about Will being….
6. Pam Griswold stated, “You are talking about stuff that we have no idea what you are talking 

about”.
7. City Clerk LaDawn Lawson stated, “She is referring to the Carlin Fire Department, LLC.  They 

are an entity by themselves and they meet the first Monday of ever month.”
8. Jan Brizee stated, “They are supervised by the City Manager”.
9. City Clerk LaDawn Lawson replied, “No they are not”.
10. Jan Brizee inquired, “ Who supervises them?”
11. City Clerk LaDawn Lawson stated, “Their chief does.  The only thing that we supervise is the 

two city employees that we have. 
12. Councilperson Jay Duke stated, “So in essence that is a member voting group.  The Carlin 

Council does not vote in the Carlin Fire Chief like we do as City Police Chief.  It is completely 
different”.

13. Jan  Brizee  stated, “I understand that none of you 4 or 5 are responsible for this.  I want it on the 
record and in the minutes of this meeting how this fire department  responded to Will after 45 
years”.

14. Mayor  Donnetta  Skinner stated, “I think we should have known about it; I do not think that is 
great.”.

15. City Clerk LaDawn Lawson stated, “They have always voted in the fire chief themselves.  In 
the Carlin Code, it does say that the Carlin Council is to appoint a Fire Chief, but in the practice 
the Council has always accepted who the Carlin Fire LLC votes in for that position and that is 
how it has been run and I have never.”

16. Jan  Brizee  stated, “You work very closely with City Manager David Jones.  Is David’s wife not 
a city employee.”

17. City Clerk LaDawn Lawson replied, “Yes, she is a city employee.  I did not ask about the LLC 
stuff. That is not my concern”. 

18. Jan  Brizee  stated, “So, the fire department is totally separate from the Council except that its 
secretary is employed by the City of Carlin”.

19. City Clerk LaDawn Lawson stated, “I do not know that she is the secretary of the LLC; I do not 
know who their secretary is.  I t is worth checking into.  F or you r  information, before this 
Council was here, there have been several times w here the Carlin Fire Department  LLC ha s 
been questioned about i ts  practice s  and we have a full room of Carlin volunteers and they have 



Carlin City Council
City of Carlin Meeting Minutes      February 25, 2015

3

told  the Council that they will not pick their but t s up if they do anything  with the LLC.   In 
defense of this Council, Donnetta knows….”

20. Jan Brizee inquired, “I am not condemning this Council.  Have I upset any of you personally?.
21. Mayor  Donnetta  Skinner stated, “Actually I am a little angry I did not know anything about this. 

I am supposed to be the Mayor and they should have told me that they were doing this.  I had 
no idea”.

22. City Clerk LaDawn Lawson stated, “They have never told us….”
23. Mayor  Donnetta  Skinner stated,  “If they work under our City, I want to know what they are 

doing and if they do not like it….”.
24. City Clerk LaDawn Lawson stated, “Will has told me that there has been an agreement between 

the City of Carlin and Carlin LLC Volunteer Fire and Ambulance and I have not been able to 
find that agreement.  I have requested it from him and they have looked and I have not gotten a 
copy as of yet”.

25. Councilperson Jay Duke stated, the liaison to the council is always invited and has been invited 
to any meetings.”

26. Mayor  Donnetta  Skinner stated, “That has not happened over the past few years, do you know 
that?  That nobody has ….”

27. Councilperson Jay Duke stated he is the liaison for the Police Department and they invite me 
down and talk to me.  That is how that should happen.

28. Discussion was held on the liaison for the Fire Department.
29. Mayor Donnetta Skinner stated she would start attending the meetings
30. City Clerk LaDawn Lawson stated, “Jan, thank you for your comments”.
31. Mayor Donnetta Skinner stated, “I do not think it was fair for them to handle this that way”.
32. City Clerk LaDawn Lawson stated “there are some problems with the  Carlin LLC  as they have 

their own 501 3C for the Carlin Volunteer Fire and Ambulance.  They have established this 
partnership with the City, again, we have had issues before.  I hate to say that I am the old 
person here, but I have been here a long time”.

II. Review, update and discussion of the Carlin Crossing LLC. Development Project presentation 
offered by Mr. Paul Tanguay and all related matters. (Non- Action Item)
1. Paul  Tanguay  accompanied by Marion Hose , both of whom are represen t ing  Carlin Crossing 

LLC.   noted  they had been giving regularly updates and there are a few changes internally, but 
want to announce they would be continuing those updates on a monthly basis.  He noted this 
week they would be submitting the tentative maps for the first 2 residential villages once the 
roads and infrastructure are installed.  He presented the maps and discussed various items 
within them.  He stated he is talking to a builder from Elko at present.  He stated the North 
Village contained larger lots and talking to several builders there, but no decision has been 
made yet.   He noted they are working with  a  apartment group and talking about a potential 
senior housing center and working with a travel center group.  He stated there is a hotel site, 
which at this time would be a Best Western.  He stated they feel they have made good progress 
this year.   He stated they have had discussion with staff on working on public financing for the 
infrastructure and “you will see some of that unfolding in the coming weeks and we actually 
want to schedule workshops to talk about how that can be structured.  Financing in Elko 
County is difficult as you understand,  but we think we are making progress on that.  Then the 
infrastructure, which is simply  all of the roads and street frontages will finally get started. “.

2. Councilperson Bob DeMars inquired when they will start.
3. Paul  Tanguay  stated, “If everything goes well, April or May”.  He noted the updates  would  give 

actual starting dates after they have the schedule in hand after the financing piece they are 
working on now.  He stated they would publish those as soon as they ‘nail’ down the financing.

4. Councilperson Jay Duke stated he is glad to see Mr.  Tanguay  is still involved.  He inquired 
what the income levels for East vs. North.  



Carlin City Council
City of Carlin Meeting Minutes      February 25, 2015

4

5. Paul  Tanguay  stated the East homes  would  start under $180,000 - $300,000 and North start at 
$230,000 – $350,000.  

6. Councilperson Jay Duke inquired about the North Village if they put in a senior citizen area.
7. Paul  Tanguay  stated the upper retail area would be ground level and the mid-tier is the pot ential 

senior housing project and above that would be  North  residential.  He stated there is a natural 
separation with the slopes between.

III. Review ,   discussion and possible  approval of  a request  for a second extension to the Master 
Water and Master Sewer Plans for Carlin Crossing LLC.  as  required by the Development 
Agreement. An extension of 45 days is being requested ,  and all related matters .  (Possible 
Action Item)
1. Paul  Tanguay   representing Carlin Crossing  stated  they feel there are some very important 

aspects to this that apply today.  He stated the development agreement included a Master Water 
and Sewer plan within 6 months of the effective date of that agreement .   He stated they 
submitted this to the City Engineer at that time and unfortunately it took almost four (4) months 
before they got their first response from the City Engineer and we lost that time, but there was 
virtually no interaction.  He stated in  their last  request to extend the 6 month deadline, they 
thought they had enough time, but “since that last hearing, we have discovered there are other 
still unclear issues regarding emergency storage, regarding water supply and wells that quite 
frankly move the dial on us in terms of cost anywhere from $1 million and half to $3 million. 
So beginning next week, we are bringing in a 3 rd  party engineer to do kind of a peer review 
over the work that has been done to this day on the Master water plan.  That is a peer review of 
our engineer’s work, but also interact s  with the City Engineer.  He stated this group is  Lumas 
Engineering out of Reno and they have done many master water plans with many rural towns in 
Nevada and other states.  He noted their experience level  would  clear up some of  the  remaining 
issues that have not yet been cleared up between the Carlin City Engineer and our own project 
engineer.  That is the baseline of our request for the extra 45 days extension”.

2. Councilperson Jay Duke expressed he likes the idea of a  third  party review.   He stated they 
want the project done right and for them to take the initiative.  That is not out of our pocket, it 
is out of yours and it will be done.  

3. Councilperson Bob DeMars inquired who their engineer is.
4. Paul  Tanguay  stated  A M  Engineering, noting they are still the engineer, but they would  be 

bringing  in an experienced specialty water planning engineer.  He stated they are familiar with  
their work.

5. Pam Griswold inquired if this has been going on for the past 6 months and 4 months to get the 
information, is that information that should have been provided 4 months ago and wasn’t. 
Should the City have said they had a concern with this and told you 4 months.

6. Paul Tanguay stated he could not answer that question until Loomis came in.
7. Pam Griswold stated she would like to know if it was something  we  should be made aware of 

months ago.  
8. Councilperson Jay Duke  inquired , “Since there was a time lag in working with our City 

Engineer, is To m  Ballew on board now for the 45 day extension and the potential that it is 
coming. 

9. Paul  Tanguay  stated, “No,  he is not; we just sat down with our engineer today and we are 
scheduling meetings next Wednesday when their representatives are in town and quite frankly, 
I have not called Tom to schedule that meeting or City Manager David Jones”.

10. Discussion  was held on the 30 days left and whether it was enough, with con s ensus  that it 
would take 12.5 days. 

11. Paul  Tanguay  stated this is not a redo; it is not a complaint rework.  He   stated they already have 
the Master plan in a binder ready to go only to have the T’s crossed and I’s dotted.  He stated 
this is to make everyone comfortable.



Carlin City Council
City of Carlin Meeting Minutes      February 25, 2015

5

12. Councilperson Jay Duke  moved for  approval of  a request  for a second extension to the 
Master Water and Master Sewer Plans for Carlin Crossing LLC.  as  required by the  
Development Agreement. An extension of 45 days is being requested , and all related 
matters.   Councilperson Bob  DeMars  seconded the motion.  The motion carried 
unanimously.

IV. Review, discussion and possible approval  for Eagle Communication to install a VHF 
Communications Repeater on Mary’s Mountain for $16,500.00 to allow the Carlin Police 
Department to communicate with Central Dispatch , and all related matters.  ( Possible Action 
Item)
1. Police Chief Dennis  Fobes   reported  that since Elko County has taken over the frequency and 

they will need a repeater on Mary’s Mountain and a new frequency.  He stated there is a quote 
from Eagle Communications to do that at $11,272.36 and $4,500 for the microwav e  for that 
channel, which would be an annual cost.  

2. Mayor Donnetta Skinner stated in order to do this, they would have to augment the budget.
3. Pam Griswold inquired if they had discussed this  with  Eureka   County , who had a microwave at 

one time on the  mountain  and she believes their police department is tied into that.  She noted 
Eureka County responds to a lot that is dispatched from Carlin.  She stated the amount of taxes 
they get from the mines. Eureka has been known to work with other entities and they may be 
able to help financially with that.  She recommends that they contact in person their Department 
or City Council about that.

4. Tom Burney inquired when this would happen.
5. Chief Fobes indicated that they are dealing with that already as the channel is being used.
6. Tom Burney stated City Manager David Jones estimated the cost at $15,000 or more for this 

and should get some recognition for that.
7. Councilperson Pam Griswold  moved for  approval  for Eagle Communication to install a 

VHF Communications Repeater on Mary’s Mountain for $ 11,272 . 36  to allow the Carlin 
Police Department to communicate with Central Dispatch  with approximate 6% 
contingency and $4,500 for a channel on the microwave system , and all related matters.  
Councilperson Jay Duke seconded the motion.  The motion carried unanimously.

V. Review ,  discussion  and  possible approval for Bill Miller Equipment Sales to install a rebuilt 
transmission in the 14 G Motor Grader for $17,500.00 , and all related matters.  ( Possible 
Action Item)
1. Public Works Director Carlos Esparza  explained that the  motor grader repair is as cheap as they 

are going to get.  He stated he has another quote f r om Cashman Equipment for a refurbished 
transmission, which is quite a bit of difference.   He stated this is their only  practical  option 
other than doing without.  

2. Councilperson Bob DeMars inquired how long has it been down.
3. Public Works Director Carlos Esparza stated since the end of September.
4. Mayor Donnetta Skinner inquired how long it would take to do the refurbishment.
5. Public Works Director Carlos Esparza stated a couple of weeks since it is torn down and the 

parts are available.
6. Councilperson Bob  DeMars  stated he talked to Bill Miller and the transmission came from their 

Maryland office.
7. Mayor Donnetta Skinner stated it has to be done.
8. Councilperson Pam Griswold inquired if they use it for weed abatement.
9. Public Works Director Carlos Esparza replied affirmatively.  He stated it is used mainly at the  

sewer ponds on the levees and Tomera Ranch, as well as other places.
10. Thomas Burney stated he has expressed some concerns before and looked into this himself and 

is not sure this is the only option.  He stated they need to take a look at doing business 
differently.  He noted they just spent $15,000+ and apparently this transmission comes with a 



Carlin City Council
City of Carlin Meeting Minutes      February 25, 2015

6

warranty and dating back to the  hydraulic pump issue and in digging into it, he was told that job 
got done for about $6,000.  He stated that did not include the hydraulic pump; I was told that 
was going to be  a $13,000 job with the hydraulic pump in the range of $5,000. I was told that 
the hydraulic pump was a donation; however that $5,000 donation is still money spent toward 
the maintenance of the City’s equipment.  He stated. “What didn’t that donation take care of; I 
do not know.  He stated he does not have any idea of where that donation went.  He stated that 
his understanding is  that  he was told that Bill Miller gave the City $35,000 for road grader and 
it could be rented for $2,000 a week.  He stated by adding the $17,000 cost to that $35,000 they 
are talking a $56,000 piece of equipment.

11. Public Works Director Carlos Esparza stated the talked to Cashman, Komatsu and they have 
graders for rent, but they are not in Elko County and  with  the transportation cost from Reno  it  
would be about $1,200 a week.

12. Tom Burney stated there are three (3) companies in town that pay taxes to Carlin and  h e is not 
casting any aspersions to any employee, but he was told there may have been an operating issue 
with this grader.  He noted, “If the City cannot guarantee me a cost, we have three companies 
who pay taxes in town and we could throw some business their way and incentive  to boost  this 
town.  I do not know what it would cost, but it would be a fixed expense”.  He noted one of the 
people he spoke to would supply a grader  and  operator that is certified.  Is it no downgrade of 
any city employee, but the point is that we get a contract for a grader and an operator, is our 
stuff going to get done quicker or more efficiently than it  is .   We have somebody that operates a 
grader and does a pretty good job, but if there is not going to be a good hand doing it all the 
time.  We would be getting a good operator about 200 days a year and the city cannot afford 
that, but if there is a guaranteed cost set.  He noted when the hydraulic pump went out last year, 
we spent $6,000 plus and if he had asked about the grader at that time, he would have been told 
the grader is good, but now less than a year later, it is not.  My point is that I am sure that the 
omission of telling me about the hydraulic pump was a separate issue was an omission.  We 
cannot do that as a city; we cannot do it orally.  We have to take into account the cost of the 
hydraulic pump in addition to the cost today.  If I do not have all the cost, I am sure you do not. 
I think we need some request for proposal, even if it is put off for a year, it may only cost 
$3000-$4000 this year.   He spoke about the  Tomera  Road and its condition being a speed issue. 
The city has put itself in a position of curb and gutter and it more than doubles the cost.  They 
either don’t do  it, which  affects the city’s finances.   There has  not been a tie-in of asphalt to the 
curb and gutters for over 2 years, yet we can go out and buy a road grader repair and people 
waiting who have paid their money to have the curb, gutter and sidewalk.  I don’t want to think 
that I am bringing up a deliberate omission.  This is just something that I do and I know about 
these things. Any business that I work for, this would not fly.”

13. Councilperson Pam Griswold inquired about the three companies.
14. Tom Burney stated Ames Construction ,  have  a grader, Thomas Petroleum, but that grader may 

be owned privately, but they may be able to contract and the last one is  Capurro  Construction.     
He  stated  there are others in Elko.  He explained, “Nothing I have said tonight should be 
construed to an employee, this is a dollars and cents issue”.

15. Public Works Director Carlos Esparza stated, “The only person on my list for asphalt tie-in is 
Becky  Ga lyean  and that has been since last summer.  We call different outfits, but after talking 
to City Manager David Jones, the best route was to fix our own equipment.  To replace that 
blade would cost about $125 ,000,so  we thought $17,000 was a small price to put that back on 
the road.  Calculating the cost and repair since having the blade in 1995  or 1996  we have 
probably spent about $10,000 in repairs.  A lot of the damage was actually done to the blade 
when it was used to build the Equestrian Park; we had some volunteer labor running the 
equipment . Other than that the same 2 operators have operated it the whole time.  It was old 
when we got it and we have to baby it is not like a brand new blade”.

16. Councilperson Bob  DeMars  stated ,  “ T o call up someone who is contracted  to  tak e  care of 
some of the City’s business when someone calls and needs their road graded ,   “h ow can we rely 



Carlin City Council
City of Carlin Meeting Minutes      February 25, 2015

7

on somebody for that and then have something like that hanging over our heads.”
17. Tom Burney  stated  he understands .   “H e is just giving them information, but  was  concerned  

about  what he was told the cost for the last repair  was and  which was not the actual cost.  He 
appreciate d  the donation part of that, but the cost of a replacement part has to be built into the 
budget.  He stated if they cannot guarantee the cost on the equipment, like a tire, then it is a cost 
that you did not count on.  He stated, “From this day forward, you are taking a risk, because 
you are committing us to a cost that you do not know in advance.  He stated they need to do a 
proper risk assessment.

18. Kathy Burney stated, “In listening to this conversation, you mentioned specific roads; is this 
grader only good for 3-4 roads in the town.”

19. Public Works Director Carlos Esparza replied affirmatively.  He stated the y  often have projects, 
but the majority of the use will be roads.

20. Kathy Burney stated, “Four roads only”.
21. Councilperson Jay Duke stated he would hope it would be used for fire protection, for snow 

removal in extreme conditions, “it is a multi-use unit”.
22. Kathy Burney stated,  “We are looking specifically at four (4) roads and my big thing is that 

eventually she would like to see all roads paved.  That would be for all the citizens”.
23. Discussion was held on West Main.
24. Thomas Burney stated, this is a communication issue, noting he had been told it belonged to the 

railroad.
25. Councilperson Jay Duke stated he appreciates Tom Burney’s information research and what we 

are talking about are two (2) elements in a piece of equipment and it starts with availability and 
moves into utilization.  The more you utilize a piece of equipment, the less it will be available. 
He noted in terms of this grader; it was old when Carlin acquired it and  Newmont  used it for a 
lot of years.   He stated for using only $20,000 in the years they have had it, they are doing 
something right. He stated they do not overuse it, but they maintain it to make it available.  He 
noted this is the right decision on this grader at this time.  He suggested they start tracking the 
hours of use until the next component goes down.  

26. Tom Burney inquired if Carlin could share a county grader.  He noted they designate certain 
roads as different classes and they do not use certain equipment on it.  

27. Councilperson Jay Duke noted the County would not share with a City.
28. Public Works Director Carlos Esparza stated he does like Tom Burney’s idea, because he 

would not have to put a man out blading the road.  
29. Mayor  Donnetta  Skinner stated they need to repair it but they should keep Tom ’ s ideas in mind , 

because it is not going to last forever.
30. Councilperson Bob  DeMars  moved   for  approval for Bill Miller Equipment Sales to install 

a rebuilt transmission in the 14 G Motor Grader for $17,500.00 , and all related matters.     
Councilperson Jay Duke seconded the motion.  The motion carried.

VI. Review, Discussion and possible approval of payments for the periods 2/11/2015 to 2/25/2015 , 
and all related matters. (Possible Action Item)
1. Councilperson Bob DeMars inquired about a coat.
2. Public Works Director Carlos Esparza stated they do use two different parts – one is NAPA 

cheapest for heavy equipment and Auto Zone is cheaper in automotive parts.   
3. Councilperson Pam Griswold inquired about general engineering.
4. Councilperson Jay Duke  moved for  approval of  payments for the periods 2/11/2015 to 

2/25/2015 ,  and all related matters.     Councilperson Pam Griswold   seconded the motion. 
The motion carried.

VII. City Council Members’ Reports.
City Council Members report on issues, concerns and events regarding Public 
Safety, Public Works, Planning Commission, Parks & Recreation, Senior Center, 



Carlin City Council
City of Carlin Meeting Minutes      February 25, 2015

8

Cemetery and other matters of interest
(Non-Action Item)

1. Councilperson Bob  DeMars   inquired when they would move forward with the budget 
augmentations.

2. City Clerk LaDawn Lawson stated it would be in May.
3. Councilperson Jay Duke   reported on Officer Floyd  Davey is  back and he will take another 

class .   He attended the NNRDA meeting and they accepted Lander County into the 
membership.  He stated  Lander has been doing several projects through Governor’s Office on 
Economic Development ( GO E D )   that have not been started yet in Elko County.  He stated this  
would  allow them to copy some of these over the next 3-5 years.  He noted there is 
development going on in West Wendover and Wells through the Nevada Regional   and he 
briefly talked to Pam  Bo rda  to invite Eddie  Hu lt  to look at the town and what he can help us 
with. County  Commissioner Cliff   Eklund  is working on several projects for Carlin in the years 
to come and he stated this would tie those together.  He stated they might be able to get some 
money to do revitalization of Carlin.  He noted Newmont is having an open house at the office 
on March 12 and celebrating 50 years on the Carlin Trend.  He stated if they do not have a rated 
website, they probably will not be found and he will have more information about organic 
targeting later.  He stated oil and gas at the  Railport  is down to about 15% because of the lack 
of high profile now.   He noted that Wells is having trouble with one of their well with a high 
level of chloroform.

4. Councilperson Pam Griswold reported on the Western Heritage Days is the name of the event 
that  County Commissioner  Cliff  Eklund  discussed with them.   Sh e stated they are putting 
together a c o-chair to get people in Carlin involved.  She stated they would like to have  them 
pick some of the ideas that they would like to do in Carlin.  She stated everything would be 
held simultaneously in each of the towns.  She noted she suggested a hanging in Carlin  as a 
historical event .  She stated th e Days  w ould  be held on August 5/6. 2016.   She stated the story 
is historical to Carlin a s the only woma n who was hanged.  She noted they are talking about 
having some cookouts and other events during the two days with each community doing 
something different.  

5. Councilperson Jay Duke stated he thinks of Austin, California trails, pony express.
6. Councilperson Pam Griswold stated they are trying to do this on the I-80 corridor because of 

the trail and some would be trail rides and walks, utilizing the Chinese Gardens due to their 
influence at one time.  She stated the next meeting  would  be in April.   Discussion was held on 
holding cook-offs. 

7. Jim Brown stated the Potts story is related to a ghost story in Carlin.
8. Mayor  Donnetta  Skinner stated there was a death in the A nd erson family and noted several 

seniors are ill.  

VIII. City Clerk’s Report. (Non – Action Item)
1. City Clerk LaDawn Lawson  report ed that the auditors would be working at their office and they 

have been here about two (2) weeks,  which is a good sign. She stated it would take them 
another week .   She noted the payables  that  are  marked were from the dates 1/14/2014 to 
2/25/201 5  whic h  were incorrect.  They should have been from 2/14/2015 to 2/25/2015 .  This 
was discovered because of the question  from Councilperson Bob  DeMars  for flowers that were 
sent.  By the way the flowers were for Tom Coyle, City Attorney, his mother passed away.   She 
explained that the accounts payable person erred in noting the dates of the reports.    She thanked 
the Councilperson Bob DeMars for catching this.  

IX. City Manager’s Report (Non-Action Item)
1. There was no report.

X. Comments by the General Public: Pursuant to NRS 241.020(2C) this time is devoted to 



Carlin City Council
City of Carlin Meeting Minutes      February 25, 2015

9

comments by the general public and discussion to those comments. No action may be taken 
upon a matter raised under this item until the matter has been included on a successive 
agenda and identified as an action item. (Non-Action Item).
1. Tom Burney stated he talked to Public Works Director Carlos Esparza about his concerns in the 

alley of West Main.  He noted his appreciation to Mr. Esparza.
2. Rick Anderson inquired if they are still looking at new places for cleanup.
3. Councilperson Jay Duke stated they look at code, enforcement and everything including the 

condition of property.   
4. Mayor Donnetta Skinner stated the dogcatcher is doing a good job.

XI. Adjournment. (Action Item)   Councilperson Jay Duke  moved for adjournment with  
Councilperson Bob DeMars seconding the motion.
The meeting was adjourned at 8:32 p.m.

APPROVED:

DONNETTA SKINNER, MAYOR

ATTEST:

_____________________________
CITY CLERK LADAWN LAWSON


